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' WILLIAM D. KELLER o JJOEGED

Unitcd States Attorney
FREDERICK M. BROS10, JR. APR 181975
Assistant U. S. Attorney
Chief, Civil Division , (ages, U3, OSTRCT CUTE
D&INTRA I. JANAVS CLHTRAL DASIRIGT OF
Assistant U. S. Attorney N N paxty
United States Court House :
312 North Spring Street
Los Angeles, California 90012 /
Telephone: (213) 688- 2043

Attorneys for Plaintiff

—UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
. .- CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) R .

) Plaintlff,) No. CV 73-2917-MML -
. g |

GENERAL RESEARCH LABORATORIES, . EREGELSR® FINDINGS OF FACT

INC., a corporatlon, et al.,

AND CONCLUSIONS OF 1AW
Defcndu. —

v\

. This causé having come on for trial on Tuvesday, April
22, 1975, the p131ntif£ appearing by 1ts attorneys wzlliam D.
Keller, United States Attorney, Frederick M. Brosio, Jr., .
Assistant U. S. Attorney, Chief qf Civil Div;sion, by Dzintra
1. Janavs, Assistant U. S. Atto?ney, and defendants appearing
by their attormey Stephen-Tornay, the Court having considered
all of the evidence presented and admitted, having read the
wvritten briefs filcd, having heard the‘ogél argument of counsel,
being fully advised, makes the following:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. This'is an action filed by the United States of
America, pursuant tq the provisions of the Federal Food, Drug

and Cosmetic Act, 21 VU.S.C. 332(a),.sceking to enjoin defendants

from shipping the articles "(picture of Beec) Seventeen' (herc=

.after Bl?).and "Aprikern" .in interstate commerce or holding them .
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" for man,

for sale afcer:shipment in interstate commecrce,
2. The defendant, General Resecarch Laboratories, is

& corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State

of California and trading and doing business at 6925 Nayvenhurst

Avenue, Van Nuys, California, within the jurisdiction of this

.Court.

3. The defcndant, Alex S. Geczy, an individual, is
the president of said corporation and performs his dutics as
such at 6925 Hayvcnhursc Avenue, Van Nuys, California, within
the jurisdiction of this Court.’

4. The defeodanc, Nancy;L. Geczy, an individoal, is
the vice president of said corporation ano performs her duties
as such 5: 6925'nayvenhurs§ Avenue, Van Nuyé, California,
within the jurisdiction of this Court.

S. The defendant, Danald 1. Kuehne, on dndfefdeal,
is the secretary of said coroorationAand performs his doties
as such at 6925 Hayvenhurst Avenue, Van Nuys, California,
within the jurisdiction of thio Court.-

6. "The dcfendant, Institute of Nutritional Research
is a corporatxon organized and cxlsting under the laws of the
State of California and trading and doing business, withio the
jurisdiction of this Court. '

.' 7. The defendant, Bmorva. Thurston, Ph.D., Sc.D.,
an individual, is an official of said Institute of Nutritional
Research and nutrition consultant to General Research Labora-
tories and oerfotljxs his duties, within the jurisdiction of this
Court. |

8. The articles Bl7 and Aprikern afe distributed
in interstate commeroc and manufacturcd from ingredients shipped
in interstate commerce. |

-9, The artzcles Bl? and Aprikern are used for food
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10. The article B17 consiéts of scveral vitamins
and minerals, nisccllaneous nutricnté, and 500 mg. of amygdalin
in a base of apriéot fruit and kernel concentrate.

- - 11. The article Aprikern consists of a one gram
gelatin capsule containing four ground and defatted apricot

kernels,

12. The label for the article B17 states that it

‘iB a food for special dictary use.

I 13. tThc labél for the article B17, by stating that

the food is a food for special dietary use, and listing the

‘hpricot fruit and kernel concentrate containing 500 mg. of

amygdalin along with the sixteen vitomins and minerals, repre-

"sents and suggests that the apricot fruvit and kernel concentrate

-

containing 500lmg. of'amygdalin is a nutrient with special
dietéxy propergies.

14, Apricot fruit and kerhel.cqncénﬁrate containing
500 mg. of amygdalin is not a nutricnt w;th special dietary

propertics. ) .
15. The logogram "(picture of a Bec)-Seventccn“ on

the label of thé article B17 reprcsents to the consumer that

the product is or co;taina Vitqm%b B;?! and that Vitamin Bl?7

is a vitamin recbgnizcd in human nutfition and, 8 vitamin of

. the b complex.

16, "witamin B17" is also commonly known as amygdalzn
and laetrale,

17. iherc is no Vitamin B17 that is a recognized
vitam&n in human nutrition

18. There is no vitamin of the B complex that is
recognized in human nutrition as Vitsmin B17.

19. The article Aprikern contains hydrogen cyanide

" in.the amount of 1.5 mg. to 2.7 mg. per gram of gtound and

defatted apricot kernel and. 1 09 mg. to 1.60 mg. hydrogen
) 3 .

4
Ak Aoh drmten e 2 i

il

L o — e conea

—,
PRP

[y



wh#mvrwhunhbmnmcwm-ﬂmmwdw-w-wwwwmvw-ﬂ«mw"”“mﬁm

w'uun- w—mmauuu-nnuihu‘“ww.»mu-.a.n-p-su,p»no.,j-h,_,.-mu.-fu- fer sl

L. .-

Léoen

5

.i-

!

O 0O N O Ul A O N ™

Chmd pd St
N = O

[y
W

| S RS S S )
NooowI o g~

N
(34

<« NN N NN N
ogoo\'lo:mpw

3Ly

32

cyanide per capsule of aprikern.

20. When hydrogen cyanide is present in the human

body at a rate gtoater than the body's ability to detoxify the

Ahydrogcn cyanide, cyanide poisoning, manifestcd by labored

breathing, vomiting, atexia, convulsions and -death occurs.

21. Acute oral toxicity tests conoucted by the
University of Arizona Department of Pharmacology and Toxicology
determined the minxmum lethal dose of Aprikcrn (50Z of or more
of the subject animals died) to be Zg/kg of body weight in rats.
These tests determaned that Aprikern administered at the rate
of lg/kg of body weight caused symptoms of cyanide poisoning,
includzng labored breathing and convulsions, without death.
Control group animals showed no effects.

- 22. Acute oral toxicity tests conductced by tho FDA
established a minioum lethal dose of Aprikern at the rate of
2.5g/kg of body weight. At a level of 1.9 and 2.2g/kg of body
weight, the subjecﬁ animals-éhowed signs of cyanide poisoning,
including labored oreathing, convulsions and death. At a rate
2.8, 3.1 and 3.4g of Aprikern per kg of body weigot, all animsls
died. E )

23, Acute oral toxicity tests of Aprikern in beagle
dogs conducted by the FDA revealed vowiting and convulsions
when Aprikern was édminisgered at a rote.of 1.Sg/kg.body weight
via s;oméchstube, vomiting and convulsions occurred; when
administered at a ratc of Z.Zg/kg body weight in meat, vomiting
occurred; when adhinistered in capsule form at a rate of 2.5g/
kg body weight, vomiting and convulsions occurred. .

24. Acute toxicity tests of Aprihern.in monkeys

conducted by the FDA revealed vomiting, labored breathing ang

o~

. malaise when capsules were fed at a rate of 1.2 and 1.3g/kg of

body weight; when adoinistercd byAgavage at a vatc of 2.4g/kg.

body weight, voﬁitiog, convulsions and death occurrcd; when
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administcered at a rate of 1.4g/kg body wcight, labored breathing

and vomiting occurred. .
25. The lethal dosc of hydtogen cyanide in hnman
beings ranges between 50 and 280 mg for an 80 kg person.

P T Sy U

"‘“""25“"§ue to its’ hydrogen ‘eyanide content, Aprikera
is unfit for food.

27. Amysda;in'is ﬁ:escnc in both of the articles
B17 and Aprikern. . .
28, The presencé of the substance amygdalin in

ground and defatted apricot kerncls and apricot kernel con-

. centrate in both B17 and Aprikern results in its bccoming a

component of the said articles'of'food.

{ 29. Amygdalin is not generally rccognizcd by experts
qudlified by scientific traiming ano ererxence TO evajuate
ics safety, as ﬁaving been shown through scientific prﬁcedures,
including original animal, analytical and other scientific
studics and on an unprcjudlcéd compilation of both favorable
and ﬁnfavorable reliable information drawn from the scientific-
literature, to‘Le safe under the conditions of its use in the
articles Bl7 and Aprikern.

30. There is no regulation in cffect permitting
the use of a;ygdalin in foods as a food additive or exempting
amygdalin from the food aéditive requfrements of the Federal
Food, Drﬁg and Cosmetic Act. 5 .

- 31, Vitamin B17, also known as amygdalin and laetrile
are uscd in the trcatment, prevantion, cure, and nitigation of
cancer in man,

'32. Said substancetis an unprovcn.or unor thodox
cancer Eemedy.

. 33, The danger in. the use of such remedie' by public

and spccifically cancer victims is in their delaying or £orcbozng

diagnosis and trcntmenc which is penerally rccognized by the
' -5
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‘medical profession ag beneficial and cffective. ‘ .
34. The defendants and their Agegts have sold and pro-
4_ﬁ&t&d Ei7 énd;bprikcrn at Intcrnational Association of Cancer
Victims and Friends and Cancer CAntrol Society Conventions and

other conventions where unorthodox methods on cancer prevention
: : ~N

s, in connection w1th speeches conccrn1ng benefxts of laetrile, alcso
d known as amygdalin, and Vitamin B17 in cancer cure and prevention.
' 36. ﬁiterature by defendant Thurston, published by
» the Thurston Division of General Research Laboratories, speaks
of tﬁe,bcnefits of laetrile also known as amygdalin and Vitamin
Bl7 in treating of cancer. -
37. One item of such literature also contains a
picture of defenoant Thurston standing next td Dr. Dean Burk
_in front of a sign "Geperal Research lakerateziec!s—T7he caption—]
states: ‘''Dr. DeQn Burk, Chief CVtologist at the National Cancer
Institute . . . is an interested observer while Emory Thurston
samples the new 'breakfast drink' Seventecn (first demonstrated
at the convention in Los Angeles in July)."
- 38, Défendants and their agents have represented
Bl17 and Aptikcrnlto be the same as amdor similar to laetrile.
' - - 39, Defendants have represented B17 and Aprikern
to be used in the treatment, preventxon, cure ‘and mitxgation
of cancer,-

40. Defcndants intend the articles Bl7 and Aprikern
to be used in the treatment, prevcntion cure and mit1gatzon of
canCEr 1n man.

B 4il~-fhe labcls for the articles B17 and Aprikern fail
to beaxr any warn;ngs or dircctions for usc or other information
: connecced with its use, 1nc1uding dosage, duratlou and frequency

‘of administration.

LG Ge¥T T 5

and treatment have been significant topics of lectures and speeches!-
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42. ﬁef&ndants' corrcspondence sh;ws that 817 and
Aprikern wverc perceived by public as therapeutic for cancer
and that deﬁendant§‘were-aware of this and that defendants cold
;;16 products for ﬁrcvention and trcatment of cancer.

. CONCLUSIONS OF TAW

1. This Court has jurisdiction herein.

2, The articles Bl7 and Aprikern arc foods within

.

the meaning of 21 U §.C. 321(f).
3.
!
of 21 uU.S.C. 321(3), since they are intended for use in the

The articles are also drugs within the meaning

treatment and prevéntioﬁ of cauncer.

4. Amygdalln is a food additive within the mean;ng
of 21 U.S. C. 321(8)

5. B17 and Aprikern arc adulterated within the
meaning of 21 U.S.C. 342(a) (2) (C). '

6. B1? is misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C.
343(a). ' | |

T

Aprikern is adulterated wzthin the weaning of
21 U.S. c. 342(a)(3) ‘ .

8. Both Bl? and Aprxkcrn are misbranded within the
meaning of 21 U,S.C. 352(f)(1) and (2).

9.

a COnclusion of Law is hercby 1ncorporated in these Conclusions

Any. Finding'of Faét which might be dcemed to be

of Law. ] ‘ .
10, Plaintiff is entitled to a permanent injunction

herein.

ay of April, 1975.j

Sé MNatfolee. IN. Lecas
TTED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE ™

DATED: ."I.‘his 9\4-&\5

Presentcd by:
(./: -, . ,0.': . Ve .' ..,—? '
S S AP SRS e, S

DZINIRE 1., JANAYVT

'} Assistant U. S, Attorney -7
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WILLIAM . KELLER
United States Attorney
FREDERICH M. DROSIO, JR. APR 251975
Assistant U. S. A*Lo*ncy

Chl(\ T, Fi\!“. l 3 v:LsiO"l CLERK, U.S. DiSTRICY COURT
I-)ZI:: nA ] u.H \‘JS . . CENTRAL DIZTRICT OF CLLUFORNIA

Assistant U. S. Attorney

e —
United Sctates Court louse ‘;4§f7/§74 , de
312 Norxtn Spring Street 7 . /bdAg;uﬂf
los A"’CLCS, Califernia 90012 ,444//ﬁ% et
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URITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

CERIRAL DISTRICT OrF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES CF AMERICA,

Plaintiff, No. CV 73-2917-20ML

Ve

P SNTEDCR TN TIT I OATT ANT
PERMANENT INJUNCTION

——

GLNERAL RESZARCH LAECRATCRIES,

a cornoration, INS”I;VLL Cr

NUTR1ITIONAL RESEARCH, a cerpora-
S. GECZy, ManCY L.
J

R
tion and ALEX
"" hr\-.AI D ITTINY

,2C2Y, DOW . KUZLE, and
MHOAX W, ThURSTON, Ph.D., Sc.D.,
indivicduals,

Defendants.

N N/ N N o o N N N o N N S N NS

.

This cause having come on for trial on April 22, 23
and 24, 1675, the plaintiff appcaring by its attorneys William
D. Keller, United States Attorney, Frecderick M. Brosio, Jr.,
Assistant U. S. Attormey, Chief of Civil Division, by Dzintra
1. Janavs, Assistant U. S. Attorney, and Jay H. Geller, Attorney,
Food and Drug Administration, and defendants appearing by their
aétorney Stephen Tornay, the Court having considered all of the
evidence presented and admitted, and fhe written and oral
arguments of counsel, being Zuily advised, in accordance with

Fincdings of Fact and Conclusions cf Law signed herein, it

-

appearing that the dofiendants have violated and may continue %o

violate the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. 331(a),

and 331(%), unless reetraincd by ovder of this Court by doinz

r <74
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or causing tc be done the following acts WLLH respect to articles
food and drug, namely "[bee] Scventeen," and "Aprikern'" or
similar articles cf food and drug: .
(a) introducing or delivering for "introduction into
interstate commerce said articles of food and drug which are

adulterated or misbranded within thn meaning of 21 U.S.C. 342(a)
(2) (C), 342(2) (3 ),’343\“,, 352(5)(1)'aud 352(£)(2); and

®) nmnufacturing, processing, packing, and labeling
articles of food and drug, while said articles are held for sale
after shipment of one or more of théir componients in interstate
commerce, which acts result in said articles being adultrerated
or misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 342(a) (2)(C),
342(a) (3), 343(a), 352(f) (1) and 352(f)(2);

IT 1S THEREFORE CRDERED that the plaintiff's prayer
for a permanent inju unction be and is hereby granted;

IT IS IURTHER ORDERED that the defendants, General

Research Laboratcries, a corporation, Institute of Nutritional

Research, a corporation, and Alex S. Geczy, NRancy L. Geczy,

Donald J. ﬁuehne, and Emory W. Thurston, Ph.D., Sc.D., individuals,
and each and all of their officers; agents, servants, employees,
representatives, and any and all persons in active concert or

participétion:'lth them be restrained and enjoined from directly

or 1ndLLectly doing or causing to be done any of the following

acts with respect to articles of food and drug known as ''[bee]

Seventeen,' and "Aprikern,'" or any similar articles of fcod ard
drug; - ’ s
I. Introducing or delivering for introduction into
interstate commerce any of said articles of food and drug,
(a) which bear or contain the food additive,
amygdalin, which is unsafe within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 348(a)
since said additive and .its use and iqtendcd use is not in con-

formity with a regulation or excmption in effect pursuvant to

2
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-
Ll 21 u.s.c. 348; '
2 (b) which arc unfit for food by reason of the
3 potential for release of hydrcgen cyanide from said food;
4 (cj which bear or are accompanied by labeling which
S represents and supgests that Qpricot fruit and kernel concentrate
6 containing amygdalin is a nutrient with special dietary properties,
7 or that there is a Vitamin B1l7 that is a vecognized nutrient
8 essential to human nutrition, or that there is a Vitamin B17
© that is a mewber of the B complex family of vitamins;
10 (¢) which bear cr are accompanied by labeling that
1 fails to bear adequate directions for use because
12 (1) the labeliing fails to state the purpose
13 or conditicn for which the articles are intended,
14 namely, for the treatment or prevention of cancer, or
15 (2) in the event the labeling declares the
16 articles' intended purpose and corndition, namely,
7.\ for the trcatment or prevention of cancer, the
18 label must bear directions for use as required by
19 the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.
20 (e) which bear or are accompanied by labeling that
2l fails tc bcar- adequate warnings against use in those patholégical
22 conditicens and by children where their use may be dangerous to
23 health, and against unsafe dosage and methods and duration of
24 I administration or application, in such manner and form, as are
&5 necessary for the protection of users;
26 ' II. Manufacturing, processing, packing, or labeling
27 any of said articles of food and drug or similar articles of
28 food and drug while held for sale after shipment of one or more
29 ' S
of their components in interstate commerce, which acts of
30 manufacturing, processing, packing and labeling result in said
31
articles,
32 ‘
(a) bearing or containing the food additive,
. 3 . . )




s

.
= ——— - -

L& 2 I R e R N B

22

.23

24
25
26
27
28

29

30

91

W
DN

amypdalin, which 1s unsafe within the mcaning of 21 U.S.C. 348 (a)
since said additive and its use and intcndéd use is not in con-
forwity with a regulation or exemptién in effect purstuant to

21 U,S.C. 348; _

(b) being unfitc for food by recason of the potential
for relcase of hydrogen cyzanide from said food;

(c) bearing or being accompanied by labeling which
represents or suggests that apricot fruit and kernel concentrate
containing amygdalin is a nutrient with special dietary pro-
perties; or that there is a Vitamin D17 that is a rccognized
nutrient essential to human nutrition, or that there is a Vitamin
B1l7 that is a member of the B complex family of vitamins;

(d) bearing or being accompanicd by labeling that
fails to bear adequate directions for use because

(1) the labeling fails to state the purpose
or condition for which th2 articles are intended,
namely, for the treatment or prevention of cancer, or
(2) in the event the labeling declares the
articles' intended purpoﬁe and condition, namely,
for the treatment or prevention of cancer, the
label must bear directions for use as required
by the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.
(e) bearing or being accompanied by labeling that

fails to bcar adequate warnings against use in those pathological

- conditions and by children where their use may be dangerous to

health, and againét unsafe dosege and methods and duration of
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- Presented by:

~. .
administration or application, in such manner and form, as are
necessary for the protection of users. .

Issued this = ' day of April, 1975.

MATLCOLM M. LUCAS
© DNLTED STATES DISIRICT JULGE

DZINTRA L JARAVS

DZINTEA™ T J3NaVS
Assistant U. S. Attorney






